CITY COUNCIL CITY OF WEST HOLLYWOOD MINUTES MONDAY, OCTOBER 15, 2001 WEST HOLLYWOOD PARK

CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Heilman called the meeting to order at 6:40 P.M.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Bill Gordon led the pledge.

ROLL CALL:

PRESENT: Councilmember Duran, Martin, Prang, Mayor Pro Tempore

Guarriello and Mayor Heilman.

ABSENT: None.

ALSO PRESENT: City Attorney Mike Jenkins, City Manager Paul Arevalo, City

Clerk Russell and Assistant City Clerk Taylor.

REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION AGENDA: None.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

Staff requested that Community Development Commission Agenda be moved after the public hearing.

Councilmember Duran requested that the meeting be adjourned in memory of John Thompson.

ACTION: Approve the October 15, 2001 Agenda as amended. Moved by Mayor Pro Tempore Guarriello, seconded by Councilmember Martin to approve the agenda as amended. Unanimously carried.

PRESENTATIONS:

Mayor Heilman presented a proclamation to Allyne Winderman, Director of Rent Stabilization and Housing and to Tom West, Lead Social Services Program Specialist, declaring the Month of October as Lead-Safe Month.

PUBLIC COMMENT:

JAMES FUHRMAN, WEST HOLLYWOOD, addressed concerns regarding the proposed Code of Conduct for the City Council.

TOM DEMILLE, WEST HOLLYWOOD, spoke about the October 11, 2001 remembrance vigil for the September 11, 2001 terrorist attacks.

BILL GORDON, WEST HOLLYWOOD, spoke to the issue of vacancies on the Lesbian and Gay Advisory Board.

ANNE KELLOGE, BEVERLY HILLS, provided an overview on how The Maple Counseling Center is helping the community cope with the current crisis.

LISA DERRICK, WEST HOLLYWOOD, thanked Council for their support of Pagan Day in West Hollywood.

NORBY WALTERS, WEST HOLLYWOOD, spoke about a petition that is being circulated in West Hollywood and how it will hurt the City economically if it is successful.

TERRY PIETROWSKI, WEST HOLLYWOOD, spoke in support of the Sunset Millennium project and requested that citizens of West Hollywood not sign the petition.

BOB BURKE, WEST HOLLYWOOD, thanked Council for their past support of Alternative Living for the Aged and their continued support.

JANET WITKIN, WEST HOLLYWOOD, thanked Council for their continued support of the Alternative Living for the Aged.

KATHRINE THULIN, WEST HOLLYWOOD, spoke in opposition to Public Hearing item 3A on the October 1, 2001 City Council agenda.

JEANNE DOBRIN, WEST HOLLYWOOD, expressed her concerns about the non-functioning pole sign on San Vicente Boulevard. She also spoke about the petition drive that was occurring in the City of West Hollywood.

WAYNE SAKS, WEST HOLLYWOOD, requested that a traffic study be done on a Uturn sign in front of the Wild Oats Company on Santa Monica Boulevard.

NEAL ZASLAVSKY, WEST HOLLYWOOD, spoke about a petition drive that is being circulated within the City.

JEAN MATHISON, WEST HOLLYWOOD, spoke about the referendum process.

BARBARA HAMAKER, WEST HOLLYWOOD, spoke about the Commission and Board recognition event and expressed her concern with the lack of a complete mailing list within the City.

COUNCILMEMBER COMMENTS:

Mayor Pro Tempore Guarriello announced the Senior Health Fair, which will be occurring on October 17, 2001 at Plummer Park. He also expressed his concerns about needed concrete sidewalk repair on 8920 and 8924 Cynthia Street. He also announced that the City household hazardous waste roundup would be on October 27, 2001 at 341 North Foothill Road, Beverly Hills. He also addressed the donations made to the Veteran's Memorial.

Councilmember Prang requested that the meeting be adjourned in memory of Patience Winthrop Brown. He announce on October 21, 2001 Congress Waxman will be addressing housing issues. He wanted to remind everyone about the AIDS Walk on Sunday, October 21, 2001 and encouraged everyone to attend.

Councilmember Martin thanked Governor Davis for signing Assembly Bill 25 and thanked Tom Demille for his participation in the October 11, 2001 vigil. He also thanked everyone who helped construct the fence's for Mathew Sheppard's memorial.

Councilmember Duran addressed public comments concerning his expenditures and reporting practices. He also spoke about the petition that was being circulated and how misinformation is being presented to the voters. He requested that both sides' present accurate and fair information to the voters. He expressed his concern and asked Council to recognize same sex survivors of the terrorist attack.

Mayor Heilman announced that on October 17, 2001 the City would be holding a Town Hall meeting at Plummer Park to talk about the healing process of the recent terrorist attacks. He also asked the citizens to help notify everyone about the AIDS walk on Sunday, October 21, 2001. He stated that there would be adequate security at the annual Halloween Carnaval and AIDS walk.

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT: City Manager Arevalo provided an update on the Strategic Planning meetings that were held on October 13-14, 2001. He also responded to high impact businesses and how the Task Force is moving forward through the process. He asked that Richard Odenthal, Public Safety Manager, to give a brief security update on upcoming events within the City. He announced that the parking locations for the AIDS walk would be at the Pacific Design Center, Beverly Center and Cedar Sini Hospital parking lots. The City Manager requested that Wade Davenport, Code Compliance Manager, update the Council on the 24hr Fitness plumbing issue.

FISCAL IMPACT ON CONSENT CALENDAR:

City Clerk Russell stated that the fiscal impact on the Consent Calendar for Monday October 15, 2001 is \$ 0.00 in expenditures and \$0.00 in potential revenue.

2. CONSENT CALENDAR:

ACTION: Approve Items 2.A.,B.,C.,D.,E.,F.,G.,H.,I.,J.,K.,L. Moved by Mayor Pro Tempore Guarriello and seconded by Councilmember Martin to approve the Consent Calendar. Unanimously carried.

2.A. POSTING OF AGENDA:

The agenda for the meeting of Monday, October 15, 2001 was posted at City Hall, Plummer Park, the Sheriff's Station and at the West Hollywood Library on Thursday, October 11, 2001.

ACTION: Receive and file. Approved as part of the Consent Calendar.

2.B. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

ACTION: Approve the minutes of September 24, 2001 and October 1, 2001. Approved as part of the Consent Calendar.

2.C. WAIVER OF FURTHER READING:

ACTION: After the City Attorney has read the title of any ordinance on tonight's agenda, the further reading thereof shall be waived. **Approved** as part of the Consent Calendar.

2.D. DEMAND REGISTER NO. 448, RESOLUTION NO. 01-2597:

ACTION: Approve Demand Register No. 448 and adopt Resolution No. 01-2597, "A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WEST HOLLYWOOD ALLOWING AND APPROVING THE PAYMENT OF DEMANDS ON DEMAND REGISTER NO. 448." **Approved as part of the Consent Calendar.**

2.E. CLAIMS ADMINISTRATION:

ACTION: Deny the claims of Barbara Krupa, Susan P. Knego, Jason Sayers, September Sirico, Beth A. Kahn, Weldon Holcombe, Boris M. Mosenzhnik and refer to the City's claims adjuster. **Approved as part of the Consent Calendar.**

2.F. STATE GRANT RESOLUTION:

ACTION: 1) Adopt Resolution No. 01-2598, "A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WEST HOLLYWOOD APPROVING THE APPLICATION FOR GRANT FUNDS FOR ROBERT-Z'BERG-HARRIS URBAN OPEN SPACE AND RECREATION PROGRAM UNDER THE SAFE NEIGHBORHOOD PARKS, CLEAN WATER, CLEAN AIR, AND COASTAL PROTECTION BOND ACT OF 2000."; 2) Appoint the City Manager as agent to conduct all negotiations, execute and submit all documents, applications and agreements necessary for completion of the grant funded project; and 3) Authorize the Interim Director of Finance to increase budgeted revenues and expenditures as needed in the grants fund upon execution of the grant agreements. Approved as part of the Consent Calendar.

2.G. GRANT REQUEST FOR THE 2006 LOS ANGELES GAY GAMES VII:

ACTION: 1) Adopt Resolution No. 01-2599" A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WEST HOLLYWOOD PROCLAIMING SUPPORT FOR THE 2006 GAY GAMES"; 2) Identify \$50,000 in fiscal year 2002/2003 in consideration of support of the 2006 Games; 3) All City funds are contingent upon Los Angeles 2006, Inc. securing matching funds from other sources; and 4) All considerations of funding is contingent upon the award of the games Los Angeles 2006, Inc. Approved as part of the Consent Calendar.

2.H. PROPOSED RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF THE "IN DEFENSE OF FREEDOM" DECLARATION:

ACTION: 1) Adopt Resolution No. 01-2600, "A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WEST HOLLYWOOD IN SUPPORT OF THE "IN DEFENSE OF FREEDOM" DECLARATION."; and 2) Send signed copies to the California delegation to the United States Congress and other appropriate organizations. **Approved as part of the Consent Calendar.**

2.1. PROPOSED RESOLUTION CALLING ON PRESIDENT BUSH AND THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT TO RECOGNIZE GAY AND LESBIAN FAMILIES:

ACTION: 1) Adopt Resolution No. 01-2601, "A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WEST HOLLYWOOD CALLING ON PRESIDENT GEORGE W. BUSH AND THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT TO RECOGNIZE THOSE GAY AND LESBIAN FAMILIES AFFECTED BY THE ATTACKS ON THE WORLD TRADE CENTER AND THE PENTAGON ON SEPTEMBER 11, 2001"; and 2) Send copies of the resolution to President Bush, Vice-President Cheney and other appropriate agencies including legislators. Approved as part of the Consent Calendar.

- 2.J. COMMISSION AND ADVISORY BOARD ACTION REPORTS:

 ACTION: Receive and file. Approved as part of the Consent Calendar.
- 2.K. DISPERSAL OF SEPTEMBER 11, 2001 EMERGENCY RELIEF FUNDS: ACTION: Direct the Finance Director to release funds raised for the September 11th Funds in the following percentages until such time as the Relief Fund is closed: a) World Trade Center Relief Fund (33.3%); b) the Twin Towers Fund (33.3%); and c) the HERE New York Assistance Fund (33.3%). Approved as part of the Consent Calendar.

2.L. SPECIAL TOWN HALL MEETING:

ACTION: 1) Approve holding a special Town Hall meeting to help our community; and 2) Authorize staff from the Public Information and Human Services Departments to assist in organizing the Town Hall meeting. **Approved as part of the Consent Calendar.**

THE CITY COUNCIL WILL RECESS AS THE WEST HOLLYWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION: Was moved to after the public hearing.

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS:

3.A. FIRST AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT NO. 92-01 AND DEVELOPMENT PERMIT NO. 01-35 FOR THE RELOCATION OF AN APPROVED PARKING STRUCTURE WITHIN THE COMPREHENSIVE DEVELOPMENT PLAN AREA FOR BA STUDIOS, DEMOLITION PERMIT NO. 01-18 FOR DEMOLITION OF THREE (3) STORAGE STRUCTURES AND A TRASH ENCLOSURE AREA, AND ADOPTION OF A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A 7-STORY, 733 SPACE, PARKING STRUCTURE ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1041 NORTH FORMOSA AVENUE:

City Clerk stated that the item was published in the West Hollywood Independent on October 3, 2001.

Kim Zuppiger, Contract Planner, provided background information as outlined in the staff report dated October 15, 2001.

RECOMMENDATION: 1) Open the public hearing; 2) Introduce on first reading Ordinance No. 01-613." AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WEST HOLLYWOOD ADOPTING THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT NO. 92-01, FOR THE RELOCATION OF AN APPROVED PARKING STRUCTURE WITHIN THE BA STUDIOS COMPREHENSIVE DEVELOPMENT PLAN AREA, AND ADOPTION OF A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A 7-STORY, 733-SPACE PARKING STRUCTURE ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1041 NORTH FORMOSA AVENUE, AS PER THE SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN BA STUDIOS. (APPLICANT: GREG HARLESS, REPRESENTING BA STUDIOS, LLC)"; and 3) Adopt Resolution No. 01-2602, "A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WEST HOLLYWOOD APPROVING THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT PERMIT NO. 01-35 FOR RELOCATION OF AN APPROVED PARKING STRUCTURE WITHIN THE BA STUDIOS COMPREHENSIVE DEVELOPMENT PLAN AREA, DEMOLITION PERMIT NO. 01-18 FOR DEMOLITION OF THREE (3) STORAGE/UTILITY STRUCTURES AND A TRASH ENCLOSURE AREA AND ADOPTION OF A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A 7-STORY, 733 SPACE PARKING STRUCTURE ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1041 NORTH FORMOSA AVENUE ALL LOCATED IN THE CITY OF WEST HOLLYWOOD."

Mayor Heilman opened the Public Hearing and the following speakers came forward:

GREG HARLESS, MANHATTAN BEACH, applicant for BA Studios, thanked staff for all of their hard work on this project.

NICK SEIERUP, LOS ANGELES, thanked staff for all of their hard work on the project.

Mayor Heilman closed the Public Hearing.

ACTION: Moved by Councilmember Duran and seconded by Mayor Pro Tempore Guarriello to approve staff recommendations. Unanimously carried.

THE CITY COUNCIL WILL RECESS AS THE WEST HOLLYWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION: 7:55 P.M.

RECONVENE AS THE CITY COUNCIL: 7:57 P.M.

4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

4.A. SOCIAL SERVICES CONTRACT RENEWALS 2001-2002:

Daphne Dennis, Social Services Administrator, provided background information as outlined in the staff report dated October 15, 2001.

Councilmember Prang requested that the remaining \$38,625 be deferred to the next meeting for further discussion and possibly using the remaining amount to fund the Gay and Lesbian Center.

MARK HAUPERT, BURBANK, spoke in support of this item.

DILLY GAILLY, LOS ANGELES, spoke in support of this item and thanked Council for their support.

TRIPP MILLS, WEST HOLLYWOOD, thanked Council for their continued support.

GOERGE WEIS, LOS ANGELS thanked Council for their continued support.

NAOMI WISCHE, SHERMAN OAKS, thanked Council for their continued support of their programs.

WENDY TUCKER, WEST HOLLYWOOD, thanked Council for all of their support.

ANN FACTOR, WEST HOLLYWOOD, thanked Council for their continued support.

DAVID LASH, LOS ANGELES, thanked Council for their continued support and asked them to approve this item.

SUSAN MENDLOWITZ, WEST HOLLYWOOD, thanked Council for their continued support.

SUSAN ALEXMAN, LOS ANGELES, thanked Council for their continued support.

ALON FERENCY, WEST HOLLYWOOD, thanked Council for their support.

RECOMMENDATION: 1) Approve the 2001-2002 Social Services program extensions retroactive to October 1, 2001 as noted on the attached draft; 2) Authorize the City Manager to sign the contract extensions; and 3) Defer reprogramming of \$38,625 remaining from programs not recommended for renewal until mid-year analysis of the City's fiscal situation.

ACTION: Moved by Councilmember Prang and seconded by Councilmember Martin to approve staff's recommendations. Unanimously carried.

ACTION: Moved by Mayor Pro Tempore Guarriello and seconded by Councilmember Martin to direct staff to investigate funding for the Gay and Lesbian Center and bring back to Council. Unanimously carried.

4.B. 2001 HALLOWEEN CARNAVAL EVENT:

Nancy Beard, Recreation Service Administrator, provided background information as outlined in the staff report dated October 15, 2001.

Mayor Heilman recommended that the City have a presence at the event by having it staffed by City Employees.

TOM DEMILLE, WEST HOLLYWOOD, spoke regarding the street closures during this event and other issues pertaining to the event.

Councilmember Duran expressed concern with the cost of the event and the time of street closings. He recommended that staff come back to Council with a cost benefit analysis after the event to be used in planning next year's event.

Councilmember Prang recommended that future sponsors of the event not be Radio Stations.

RECOMMENDATION: 1) Approve the awarding of a contract to Showtrends Inc. for the Halloween Carnaval event; 2) Authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract between the City and Showtrends Inc. for a two-year period in the amount of \$123,110.88 per year; 3) Authorize additional expense on this contract, up to a ten percent (\$11,311), contingent upon any additional expenditure for this vendor being off set through sponsorships; 4) Approve street closures, parking request, and fee waivers contained in Exhibit A; 5) Authorize the Interim Director of Finance and Technology to increase the revenue and expenditure budget as needed to properly record sponsorships and donations; and 6) Authorize the City Manager to enter into a special event insurance agreement for a premium amount not to exceed \$50,000.

ACTION: Moved by Mayor Pro Tempore Guarriello, seconded by Mayor Heilman to approve staff's recommendations. Motion carried with Councilmember Prang voting NO.

4.C. FLAGS AND FLAGPOLES AT CITY FACILITIES:

Paul Arevalo, City Manager, provided background information as outlined in the staff report dated October 15, 2001.

TOM DEMILLE, WEST HOLLYWOOD, spoke to the size of the flagpole and asked if it would be cost effective to have larger poles at the Veteran's Memorial than throughout the City.

JEANNE DOBRIN, WEST HOLLYWOOD, spoke in favor of the item but expressed her concern about Federal regulations concerning flag maintenance.

Councilmember Prang expressed his concerns with the cost of this item and in light of the City's unstable financial condition as a result of the recent terrorist attacks.

Councilmember Martin expressed his concerns with this item and suggested that it be referred to the Public Facilities Commission for their recommendation.

Mayor Heilman recommended that flagpoles be placed at Crescent Heights and at either West Hollywood Park or the Sheriffs Station. He also recommended that construction of the Veterans Memorial begin as soon as possible.

RECOMMENDATION: 1) Provide direction for the purchase of flags and installation of flagpoles at the following City facilities: a) West Hollywood Park- \$6,625; b) Kings Road Park-\$6,525; c) Hart Park-\$6,625; and d) Veteran's Memorial Park-\$6,625; 2) Provide direction for the flying of U.S. flags along commercial streets as described in the staff report-\$16,000; and 3) Authorize the Interim Director of Finance to allocate up to \$42,500 (depending upon direction above) from undesignated reserves to account 100-5050-8520.

ACTION: Moved by Mayor Heilman and seconded Mayor Pro Tempore Guarriello to direct staff to install one flag pole and flag at Crescent Heights and either West Hollywood Park or the West Hollywood Sheriffs Station, the location to be selected by the City Manager and authorize the Interim Director of Finance to allocate the appropriate amount of undesignated reserves to account 100-5050-8520. Direct staff to come back to Council with plans to expedite the construction of the Veterans Memorial and the installation of flags there. Unanimously carried.

4.D. RECONSIDERATION OF SCOPE AND DATE OF COMMISSIONS AND BOARDS APPRECIATION EVENT:

Tony Russell, City Clerk, provided background information as outlined in the staff report dated October 15, 2001.

JEANE DOBRIN, WEST HOLLYWOOD, expressed her concern about Brown Act training and proper etiquette for Commission and Board members.

RECOMMENDATION: Direct the Director of Administrative Services to reduce the scope of the appreciation event to something smaller that would occur after one or more of the proposed trainings for the Commission and Board members.

ACTION: Moved by Mayor Pro Tempore Guarriello and seconded by Councilmember Martin to approve staff's recommendations with added direction that the event be an evening or weekend workshop with coffee and dessert afterwards. Unanimously carried.

5. **NEW BUSINESS:**

5.A. MODIFICATION OF FINANCE POLICY RESOLUTION:

Mayor Heilman, provide background information as outlined in the staff report dated October 15, 2001.

Councilmember Prang expressed his concern about the budget review process and stated that he is not in favor of losing the mechanism to review funding demands by the sub-committee.

RECOMMENDATION: 1) Adopt Resolution No. 01-2603, RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WEST HOLLYWOOD ESTABLISHING FINANCE POLICIES AND RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 93-1185." The finance procedures attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by reference are hereby approved and adopted as the finance procedures for the City. Resolution No. 93-1185 is hereby rescinded; 2) Subsume the Finance Committee into the Budget Committee, establishing one committee; and 3) Instruct staff to continue the current practice of bringing forward staff reports with fiscal analysis, anticipating that Council may send those with significant impact to the Finance and Budget Sub-Committee for review.

ACTION: Moved by Councilmember Duran, seconded by Councilmember Martin to approved staff's recommendations. Motion carried with Councilmember Prang voting NO.

5.B. ADOPTION OF CODE OF CONDUCT:

Councilmember Duran provided background information as outlined in the staff report dated October 15, 2001.

HILLARY SELVIN, LOS ANGELES, applauded the Council for their recommendations on this item.

Councilmember Martin expressed his concern on several sections of the Code of Conduct to include paragraphs 3.2, 5.2 and Section 6 of the document.

Mayor Heilman also expressed his concerns with several sections to include Section 6, and paragraph 1.4 of the document.

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 01-2604, "A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WEST HOLLYWOOD ADOPTING A CODE OF CONDUCT GOVERNING THE CITY'S ELECTED AND APPOINTED OFFICIALS."

ſ

ACTION: Moved by Mayor Pro Tempore Guarriello, seconded by Councilmember Martin to approve the Code of Conduct in concept with changes and to refer Section 1.4 back to the Sub-committee to be re-worked and to place the item on the December 3, 2001 City Council Agenda. Unanimously carried.

EXCLUDED CONSENT CALENDAR: None.

PUBLIC COMMENT: None.

6. LEGISLATIVE:

6.A. AN ORDINANCE CREATING INTERIM DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS FOR A-FRAME SIGNS AND SIMILAR OUTDOOR SIGNAGE AND FOR THE OUTDOOR DISPLAY OF MERCHANDISE IN COMMERCIAL ZONES PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 65858:

Mark Persico, Community Development Director, provided background information as outlined in the staff report dated October 15, 2001.

DAN SIEGEL, WEST HOLLYWOOD, expressed his concern about the ability for real estate agents not being able to use A-Frame signs within the City and other businesses having that ability.

HILLARY SELVIN, LOS ANGELES, spoke in support of the item.

JEANE DOBRIN, WEST HOLLYWOOD, address several concerns about the item and how it will effect the City.

Councilmember Duran stated that the moratorium is reasonable and would allow staff the opportunity to review existing codes regarding A-Frame signs.

Mayor Heilman expressed his concern with this ordinance and explained that the City has a policy concerning these signs, they are prohibited within the City. He stated that these signs do not help small businesses and he was opposed to the ordinance and to a moratorium.

Councilmember Prang stated that it might be feasible to see if there is any flexibility to ease rules concerning A-Frame signs.

Councilmember Martin stated that he could support the moratorium for a limited amount of time to get businesses through the rough time, but would not be in favor of changing the ordinance affecting A-Frame signs.

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Urgency Ordinance No. 01-614U, "AN URGENCY ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WEST HOLLYWOOD ADOPTING INTERIM DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS FOR A-FRAME SIGNS AND OUTDOOR DISPLAY PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 65858."

ACTION: Moved by Mayor Heilman and seconded by Martin to direct the Code Enforcement Department to extend the suspension of the enforcement of A-Frame and similar signs along Santa Monica Boulevard until January 15, 2002. Unanimously carried.

> John Heelman MAYOR

COUNCILMEMBER COMMENTS:

ADJOURNMENT: The City Council adjourned at 10:28 P.M. in the meeting in memory of Patience Winthrop Brown and John Thompson. Their next regular meeting will be on Monday, November 5, 2001 at 6:30 P.M. at West Hollywood Park, 647 N. San Vicente Boulevard.

APPROVED BY A MOTION OF THE WEST HOLLYWOOD CITY COUNCIL THIS 5^{TH} DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2001.

TONY RUSSELL CITY CLERK

ATTEST: